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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

BARBARA VALCARCEL, PINCHUS Case No.:
PERLMUTTER, and MICHELE ACERRA,

individually and on behalf of all others similarly
situated, CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Plaintiffs,

V. DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

RP ILLUSIONS CORP D/B/A Museum of
I1lusions New York,
Defendant.

Plaintiffs Barbara Valcarcel, Pinchus Perlmutter, and Michele Acerra (“Plaintiffs”),
individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, by and through their undersigned
counsel, bring this class action complaint against RP Illusions Corp d/b/a Museum of Illusions
New York (“Defendant” or “MOI”). Plaintiffs allege the following upon information and belief
based on the investigation of counsel, except as to those allegations that specifically pertain to
Plaintiffs, which are alleged upon personal knowledge.

NATURE OF THE ACTION

l. Defendant has been charging online purchasers of MOI tickets from its website at

https://newyork.museumofillusions.us, without properly disclosing fees prior to the consumer
checking out, in violation of the New York Arts and Cultural Affairs Law § 25.07(4).
2. When ticket purchasers visit Defendant’s website

https://newyork.museumofillusions.us, to buy an admission ticket to an event, they are initially

presented one price, only to later be shown the true total ticket price, which includes an additional

“Processing Fee.”
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3. In an effort to stop this type of business practice, New York State passed the Arts
and Cultural Affairs Law, which provides that a “platform that facilitates the sale or resale of
tickets. .. shall disclose the total cost of the ticket, inclusive of all ancillary fees that must be paid
in order to purchase the ticket.” § 25.07(4).

4. The “disclosure of the total cost and fees shall be displayed in the ticket listing
prior to the ticket being selected for purchase.” Id. (emphasis added). § 25.07(4) further states
that “[t]he price of the ticket shall not increase during the purchase process.” Id. (emphasis added).
This latest version of the law went into effect August 29, 2022.!

5. Arts and Cultural Affairs Law § 25.07(4) provides that a “platform that facilitates
the sale or resale of tickets”. . . shall disclose in a clear and conspicuous manner the portion of
the ticket price stated in dollars that represents a service charge, or any other fee or surcharge to
the purchaser.” /d.

6. As aresult of Defendant’s failure to adhere to these disclosure standards, Plaintiffs
seek relief in this action individually, and on behalf of all other ticket purchasers of Defendant
for actual and/or statutory damages in the amount of fifty dollars per violation,? reasonable
attorneys’ costs and fees, and injunctive relief under New York Arts and Cultural Affairs Law §

25.33.

PARTIES
7. Plaintiff Barbara Valcarcel is an individual consumer who, at all times material
hereto, was a citizen and resident of New York County, New York. Plaintiff purchased an

admission ticket to MOI through Defendant’s website, https://newyork.museumofillusions.us.

I See N.Y. Arts & Cult. Aff. Law § 25.07
2 See New York Arts and Cultural Affairs Law § 25.34

2
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Ms. Valcarcel Ticket Confirmation

The transaction flow process she viewed on Defendant’s website was substantially similar to that
depicted in Figures 1 through 5 in this complaint. When Ms. Valcarcel first visited Defendant’s
website to purchase a ticket, she was initially presented with a fee-less price. Only after selecting
her ticket option, then clicking through multi-pages, was she then presented with an additional

“Processing Fee.”
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8. Plaintiff Pinchus Perlmutter is an individual consumer who, at all times material
hereto, was a citizen and resident of Rockland County, New York. Plaintiff purchased an

admission ticket to MOI through Defendant’s website, https://newyork.museumofillusions.us.

$29.00

Adult 5:00 PM

o

77 8th Avenue, NY, NY 10014 ]
(Corner of 8th Ave. & 14th St.)

Thu 01/18/2024 1-

www.museumofillusions.us

e

95589565

Brder: 27231055E | pinchus perimutter NO REFUNDS OR EXCHANGES

This is your ticket. Please present this entire page at the event.
>ontact Us: (888) 214-6323 support@brushfire.com

dnly one ticket is printed per page. You should have the same number of pages as attendees you registered for this
went. Please give a page/ticket to each prior to to expedite the check-in process.

’lease expect a potential queue to enter the Museum.

Auseum Regular Hours
Aonday - Thursday from 10am to 10pm
‘riday - Sunday from 10am to 11pm

seneral Information

Visitors will have 60 minutes to experience the museum.

We recommend purchasing tickets online as it will guarantee a reservation during your desired timeslot
Tickets purchased online are ONLY for the timeslot designated on the ticket.

Tickets DO sell out.

Strollers are welcome but recommended to be checked in.

Children under 6 years old are FREE.

We are handicapped accessible to our main floor, our mezzanine level is not.

Tickets bought online are charged a service/booking fee to ensure availability.

Minors do not need to be ac by an ad .

Tickets sold at the museum will only be for the current time slot, if available.

To book tickets for groups of 20 or more, please email info @ newyorkmoi.com.

ID must be shown upon entry to be matched with at least one admission ticket.

Last ticket entry at closing, Monday to Thursday at 10PM, Friday to Sunday at 11PM.

Our family discounted rate of $95 (before taxes and processing fees) s automatically applied to orders of 2 adult
ickets and 2 children's tickets.

No Food or Drinks Allowed

Tickets Are Non-Refundable

"o reschedule your tickets, you must call Brushfire at (888) 214-6323 (Monday-Friday) or email support@brushfire.com.
Jo not contact the Museum as we CANNOT make any changes. Please keep in mind, that Brushfire may require up to 46
10urs to process your request, therefore same-day rescheduling cannot be guaraniteed. We recommend requesting a

imeslot at least 3 days in ad to ensure avail . i ticket information may also be adjusted via the
'Manage Attendees" link in your i ion email, y itis to contact Brushfire directly to
io so.

BRUSHFIRE THE GO-TO TICKETING & REGISTRATION PLATFORM. brushfire.com

Mr. Perlmutter Ticket Confirmation

The transaction flow process he viewed on Defendant’s website was substantially similar to that
depicted in Figures 1 through 5 in this complaint. When Mr. Perlmutter first visited Defendant’s
website to purchase a ticket, he was initially presented with a fee-less price. Only after selecting
his ticket option, then clicking through multi-pages, was he then presented with an additional

“Processing Fee.”
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9. Plaintiff Michele Acerra is an individual consumer who, at all times material
hereto, was a citizen and resident of Richmond County, New York. Plaintiff purchased an

admission ticket to MOI through Defendant’s website, https://newyork.museumofillusions.us.

Order 27201588E [

NEW YORK

Thank You For Your Order!

Your order is in! If you have any questions, please reply to this email or
contact us at (888) 214-6323 or support@brushfire.com.

Museum of lllusions January 6th E%7E

) Saturday, Jan 6, 2024

© Museum of lilusions
77 8th Ave

New York. NY 10014

& Order 27201588E (1 attendee)
O $33.19 - MasterCard

Please expect a potential queue to enter the Museum.

Museum Regular Hours

Ms. Acerra Ticket Confirmation

The transaction flow process she viewed on Defendant’s website was substantially similar to that
depicted in Figures I through 5 in this complaint. When Ms. Acerra first visited Defendant’s
website to purchase a ticket, she was initially quoted a fee-less price. Only after selecting her
ticket option, then clicking through multi-pages, was she then presented with an additional

“Processing Fee.”
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10.  Defendant RP Illusions Corp. d/b/a Museum of I[llusions New York is a Delaware
corporation with a principal place of business located in Decatur, GA. RP Illusions develops and
franchises museums across the world. The company's primary goal is to provide memorable and
exciting educational opportunities while evolving its approach to creativity, art, and

entertainment.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

11. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)
because there are more than 100 Class members; the aggregate amount in controversy exceeds
$5,000,000.00, exclusive of interest, fees, and costs; and at least one Class member is a citizen of
a state different from Defendant.

12.  Upon information and belief, Defendant sold thousands of tickets to its place of
entertainment through its website during the applicable class period and is liable for a minimum
of fifty dollars in statutory damages for each ticket sold.

13. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because Defendant operates
their business in the state of New York and directed their business via the sale of tickets through
their website to consumers in New York, including to Plaintiffs. Venue is proper in this District

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391 because Plaintiff Valcarcel is a resident of New York County.

NEW YORK ARTS & CULTURAL AFFAIRS LAW

14. New York enacted Arts & Cultural Affairs Law § 25.07(4), effective August 29,
2022, providing that “every operator ... of a place of entertainment ... shall disclose the total cost
of the ticket, inclusive of all ancillary fees that must be paid in order to purchase the ticket, and
disclose in a clear and conspicuous manner the portion of the ticket price stated in dollars that

represents a service charge, or any other fee or surcharge to the purchaser. Such disclosure of the

6
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total cost and fees shall be displayed in the ticket listing prior to the ticket being selected for
purchase.” Id. (emphasis added). And “[t]he price of the ticket shall not increase during the
purchase process.” Id.

15.  The State of New York’s Division of Licensing Services, presented with questions
about the scope of the law, stated that the ticket purchasing process begins once a consumer visits
a ticket marketplace and first sees a list of seat prices.’ “From the moment the prospective
purchaser assesses the [] ticket lists through the final payment ... there should be no price
increases to the purchaser for the ticket itself.”* “When a prospective purchaser selects a ticket
with full disclosure of the ticket price, the purchaser should not then have to search for the total
price of the ticket as the purchaser proceeds through the purchasing process, it should continue to
be readily available to the purchaser.”’

COMMON FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

16. When prospective purchasers visit Defendant’s website,

https:/newyork.museumofillusions.us, to start the purchase process, they must click the “Buy

Tickets” button on the upper right of the homepage. See Figure 1, next page:

3 See Request for Additional Guidance — New York State Senate Bill S.9461, N.Y. DEP’T OF
STATE, Drv. LICENS. SERVS., (Oct. 24, 2022)
https://dos.ny.gov/system/files/documents/2023/06/response-letter-redacted.pdf  (last  visited
March 5, 2024).

‘1d.

S1d.
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MUSEUM OF
W INLEL#SVIggé EXHIBITS GROUP VISITS EVENT VENUE CURRENT EVENTS FIELD TRIPS CONTACT BUY TICKETS

» A 4 | v T

EXPERIENCE THE IMPOSSIBLE

Museum of lllusions
New York

Get ready to be mesmerized in our New York Museum of Illusions!

Figure I

17. Thereafter, purchasers are prompted to select either the “Regular Admission” or

“Family Admission” options with a ticket starting price displayed for each. See Figure 2.

LN
’ \}
'y

Regular
Admission

Personalize your
experience by
choosing the time
slot that best suits
your schedule.
Regular ticket
prices start at $23

Family
Admission

Enjoy the
Museum Of
Illusions
Experience with
the whole Family!

' § Family Package

starts at $95 for 2

” Adult tickets and

2 Child tickets

Figure 2

18.  Next, purchasers are prompted to select the date and time of their visit. See Figure

3, next page.
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March 15, 2024 Times for: Regular Admission

March 2024

L ] 2 Afternoon Evening Night
10:20 AM 10:40 AM 11:00 AM
5 tickets left

11:20 AM 11:40 AM 12:00 PM 12:20 PM

12:40 PM

Go To Next Available Date >

Your selection: March 15, 2024 10:00 AM - 10:20 AM CONFIRM

Figure 2
19.  After confirming, purchasers are prompted to select a quantity and type of tickets.
See Figure 4.
How many tickets would you like? CART 4
Adult (13+)
Children (ages 6-12)
Student
Senior
Figure 4
20. Finally, purchasers are taken to the checkout screen where the ticket “Total” price

is displayed. See Figure 5, next page.
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Review your order

Admission $29.00 REMOVE

I $29.00 (Adult (13+))

Order Summary

Item Subtotal
March 1,2024 5:40 pm

General Admission | ONLINE Processing Fee
Each timeslot is scheduled 20 minutes apart, however, the average

time spent in the museum is about 45-60 minutes. The museum is
self-guided which allows you to engage with the exhibits at your own

Sales Tax

pace. Depending on museum capacity, we may stagger entry which Total
could result in a slight wait at the door.

Children ages 4 and under are free and do not require a ticket for
entry. Have a promo code?

Figure 5

21. It is only on this final screen that purchasers are presented with an added
“Processing Fee.” This is the first time Defendant’s make any mention of additional “Fees” in the
entire multi-step ticket purchase process.

COMPLIANCE WITH NEW YORK ARTS AND CULTURAL AFFAIRS § 25.07(4)

22. Certain ticket sellers’ websites, in contrast to MOI, appear to comply with ACAL.
Ticket reseller Eventbrite, Inc. (“Eventbrite”) presentation of fees on their website

https://www.eventbrite.com/ is an example of a business that is in compliance with the New York

Arts and Cultural Affairs Law § 25.07(4).
23. As soon as a purchaser is prompted to select their ticket type, they are presented

with the ticket price, inclusive of fees. See Figure 6, next page.

10
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LORRE'S CLOSET

Lorre*s Closet Relaunch & Fashion Show- Classy Sexy Chic x
Sai lay 4 -6 - 9:30pm EDT
General Admission a 1
$39.47 incl. 34 47 Fee Order summary
Sales end on May 4, 2024
1 xGeneral Admission $35.00
VIP Admission 0 Subtotal $35.00
Fees @ $4.47
$50.18 incl. §5.18Fee
Sales end on May 4, 2024
Total $39.47
This ticket includes a reserved seat, a complimentary g f champagne, a gift bag Price includestax

and discounted drinks at the bar.

Early Bird Admission 0

$34.12 incl. $4.12Fee
Sales end on May 4, 2024

Figure 6

24. Finally, the purchaser arrives at the checkout page, ready to complete their

purchase, and is shown the same ticket price presented on the prior page. See Figure 7.

LORRE'S CLOSET

< Checkout x
Time left 19:54
Billing information
Log_in for a faster experience. * Required
Firstname * Lastname*
Order summary
Email address* Canfirm email LxCenerl ddgussion $35.00
Subtotal $35.00
Keep me updated on more events and news from this event organizer.
Fees @ $4.47
Send me emails about the best events happening nearby or online
Delivery $0.00
1 x eTicket
Pay with
Total $39.47

Credit or debit card E

PayPal n

(GPay
(GPay)

Google Pay

Figure 7

11
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25.  In contrast to Defendant’s presentation of ticket pricing, at no point during the
multi-step purchase process presented by Eventbrite did the ticket price displayed to the buyer
change. It remained consistent from the first point of selection through to checkout, in compliance
with New York Arts and Cultural Affairs Law § 25.07(4).

26.  Additionally, the American Museum of Natural History (“AMNH”) serves as
another example of how ticket fees should be presented to comply with the statute.

27.  When a purchaser visits the American Museum of Natural History (“AMNH”)

website at https://www.amnh.org to purchase a ticket, they are initially prompted to select the

type and quantity of tickets, with a price displayed. See Figure §.

Adult Admission $28.00

Select Number of

i
Tickets
Adult Admission $28 . 1

Child Admission (Ages 3-12) $16 0

Student Admission (with valid ID) $22 0

Senior Admission (Ages 60+) $22 0

Figure 8

28. Thereafter, a purchaser is prompted to select the date and time of their visit, with
the price display remaining the same as it was during the initial step in the purchase process. See

Figure 9, next page.

12
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Adult Admission $28.00

Select Date Saturday, February 3, 2024 at 11:30 am

Tickets available through June 30, 2024.
Continue »

January 2024 February 2024 >

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Sa

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

(]I
I
=[]
EIEIEC
=]

v Saturday, February 3, 2024

Select Arrival Time

Last timed-entry reservation is 4 pm.

(10:!10 um) <10:30 um) <1‘I‘DCI um) +~ M:30 am 12:30 pm 1:00 pm

Figure 9

29.  Next, the purchaser is asked to review their cart to confirm their ticket details. See

Figure 10.

American Museum 2 a
of Natural History i Your Vit Exbitons Clandarjon 8 Support Shop

Review Cart

General Admission Remove
setrion Februeny G g0 Y

(1) Adult Admission $28.00

Subtotal $28.00

Figure 10

13
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30.  Finally, the purchaser arrives at the checkout page, ready to complete their

purchase. See Figure 11.

Checkout
P (1) General Admission
Billing Address Soludoy Fabruary 0,224 o1 1130 AM
Return to Cart
First Name * Last Name *
Total $28.00
ddress: oy e e o e
Country* State* Zip Code* Phone Number
usa
Payment Details
Enter credit card details.
Name on Card* Card Number * Month =~ Year= (=0
Figure 11
31.  In contrast to Defendant’s presentation of ticket pricing, at no point during the

multi-step purchase process presented by AMNH, did the ticket price displayed to the buyer
change. It remained consistent from the first point of selection through to checkout, in compliance

with New York Arts and Cultural Affairs Law § 25.07(4).

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

32.  Plaintiffs bring this action pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure, individually and on behalf of the following Class:

All purchasers of tickets to the MOI New York location from Defendant’s website.

33. Specifically excluded from the Class are Defendant’s, its officers, directors,

agents, trustees, parents, children, corporations, trusts, representatives, employees, principals,

14
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servants, partners, joint venturers, or entities controlled by Defendant, and their heirs, successors,
assigns, or other persons or entities related to or affiliated with Defendant and/or its officers and/or
directors, the judge assigned to this action, and any member of the judge’s immediate family.

34.  Plaintiffs reserve the right to amend the Class definition above if further
investigation and/or discovery reveals that the Class should be expanded, narrowed, divided into
subclasses, or otherwise modified in any way.

35. This action may be certified as a class action under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure
23 because it satisfies the numerosity, commonality, typicality, adequacy, and superiority
requirements therein.

36.  Numerosity (Rule 23(a)(1)): The Class is so numerous that joinder of all Class

members is impracticable. Although the precise number of such persons is unknown, and the facts
are presently within the sole knowledge of Defendant, Plaintiffs estimate that the Class is
comprised of hundreds of thousands, or more, Class members. The Class is sufficiently numerous
to warrant certification. The exact number of Class Members is in the possession and control of
Defendant.

37. Typicality of Claims (Rule 23(a)(3)): Plaintiffs, like the other customers of MOI

have been subjected to MOI deceptive pricing disclosure practices. Plaintiffs are members of the
Class and their claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class. The harm suffered
by Plaintiffs is similar to that suffered by all other Class members that was caused by the same
misconduct by Defendant.

38. Adequacy of Representation (Rule 23(a)(4)): Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately

represent and protect the interests of the Class. Plaintiffs have no interests antagonistic to, nor in

15
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conflict with, the Class. Plaintiffs have retained competent counsel who are experienced in
consumer and commercial class action litigation and who will prosecute this action vigorously.

39. Superiority (Rule 23(b)(3)): A class action is superior to other available methods

for the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy. Because the monetary damages suffered
by individual Class members is relatively small, the expense and burden of individual litigation
make it impossible for individual Class members to seek redress for the wrongful conduct asserted
herein. If Class treatment of these claims is not available, Defendant will likely continue its
wrongful conduct, will unjustly retain improperly obtained revenues, or will otherwise escape
liability for its wrongdoing as asserted herein.

40. Predominant Common Questions (Rule 23(a)(2)): The claims of all Class

members present common questions of law or fact, which predominate over any questions
affecting only individual Class members, including:
a. Whether Defendant failed to disclose the total cost of the ticket, including all
ancillary fees, prior to the tickets being selected for purchase in violation of
New York Arts & Cultural Affairs Law § 25.07(4);
b. Whether the displayed price of Defendant’s tickets increases during the
purchase process in violation of New York Arts & Cultural Affairs Law §
25.07(4); and
C. Whether Defendant failed to disclose its service charge in a clear and
conspicuous manner in violation of New York Arts & Cultural Affairs Law §
25.07(4).
41. Plaintiffs know of no difficulty which will be encountered in the management of

this litigation which would preclude its maintenance as a class action.

16
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42. The prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the Class would run
the risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications and establish incompatible standards of conduct
for Defendant. Prosecution as a class action will eliminate the possibility of repetitious and
inefficient litigation.

43.  Defendant has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the Class,
thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief or corresponding declaratory relief with respect
to the Class as a whole.

44. Given that Defendant has not indicated any changes to its conduct, monetary
damages are insufficient and there is no complete and adequate remedy at law.

CAUSES OF ACTION

COUNT I
NEW YORK ARTS & CULTURAL AFFAIRS LAWS 25.07
(On Behalf Of The Nationwide Class and New York Subclass)

45. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every factual allegation contained in
paragraphs 1-6, and 16-44, as if fully set forth herein.

46. Plaintiffs bring this claim individually and on behalf of the members of the
Nationwide Class and New York Subclass against Defendant.

47. Defendant is an “operator[s]... of a place of entertainment” under N.Y. Arts &
Cult. Aff. Law § 25.03(6), because Defendant operates MOI, which constitutes a “place of
entertainment.”

48. Under N.Y. Arts & Cult. Aff. Law § 25.03(6), a “‘Place of entertainment’ means
any privately or publicly owned and operated entertainment facility such as a theatre, stadium,
arena, racetrack, museum, amusement park, or other place where performances, concerts,

exhibits, athletic games, or contests are held for which an entry fee is charged.”

17
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49.  Defendant, by failing to disclose the “total cost of a ticket, inclusive of all ancillary
fees that must be paid in order to purchase the ticket” after a ticket is selected, as depicted in
Figures 1 through 5 of this Complaint, has violated New York Arts & Cultural Affairs Law §
25.07(4)

50. Through increasing the total cost of its tickets during the purchase process, as
depicted in Figures I through S of this Complaint, Defendant violated New York Arts & Cultural
Affairs Law § 25.07(4)

51.  Additionally, by failing to “disclose in a clear and conspicuous manner the portion
of the ticket price stated in dollars that represents a service charge, or any other fee or surcharge
to the purchaser,” as depicted in Figure 5 of this Complaint, Defendant further violated New York
Arts & Cultural Affairs Law § 25.07(4)

52.  Defendant’s “processing fee” is an “ancillary fee[] that must be paid in order to
purchase the ticket.” N.Y. Arts & Cult. Aff. Law § 25.07(4).

53. Plaintiffs purchased tickets on Defendant’s website and were forced to pay
Defendant’s service charge in order to secure their tickets. Plaintiffs were harmed by paying this
service charge, even though that total cost was not disclosed to Plaintiffs at the beginning of the
purchase process, and therefore, is unlawful pursuant to New York Arts & Cultural Affairs Law
§ 25.07(4).

54. Plaintiffs were also harmed by paying Defendant’s service charge, even though it
was not clearly and conspicuously disclosed on the final checkout page, and therefore, is unlawful
pursuant to New York Arts & Cultural Affairs Law § 25.07(4).

55. Through this Complaint, Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and members of the

Class, seek to enjoin the unlawful acts and practices described herein, to recover actual damages

18
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or fifty dollars, whichever is greater, and reasonable attorneys’ fees. See N.Y. Arts & Cult. Aff.
Law § 25.33.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated,

seeks judgment against Defendant, as follows:

(a) For an order certifying the Class under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
and naming Plaintiff as representative of the Class and Plaintiff’s attorneys as Class
Counsel to represent the Class;

(b) For an order declaring that Defendant’s conduct is improper and in violation of New
York Arts & Cultural Affairs Law §25.07;

(c) For an order finding in favor of Plaintiffs and the Class;

(d) For compensatory and statutory damages in amounts to be determined;

(e) For prejudgment interest;

(f) For an order of restitution and other available forms of equitable monetary relief;

(g) For injunctive relief as the Court may deem proper; and

(h) For an order awarding Plaintiffs and the Class their reasonable attorneys’ fees and

exXpenscs.

19
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DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY

Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury of all issues so triable.

Dated: March 05, 2024

LEVI & KORSINSKY, LLP

By: /s/ Eduard Korsinsky
Eduard Korsinsky (EK-8989)
Mark S. Reich (MR-4166)
33 Whitehall Street, 17th Floor
New York, NY 10004
Telephone: (212) 363-7500
Facsimile: (212) 363-7171
Email: ek@zlk.com
mreich@zlk.com

Counsel for Plaintiffs

20
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